

MINUTES

Meeting: Westbury Area Board

Place: Online Meeting

Date: 8 October 2020

Start Time: 7.00 pm Finish Time: 8.30 pm

Please direct any enquiries on these minutes to:

Stuart Figini (Democratic Services Officer), Tel: 01225 718221 or (e-mail) stuart.figini@wiltshire.gov.uk

Papers available on the Council's website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

In Attendance:

Wiltshire Councillors

Cllr Carole King (Chairman), Cllr Russell Hawker, Cllr Gordon King and Cllr Suzanne Wickham (Vice-Chairman)

Wiltshire Council Officers

Graeme Morrison – Community Engagement Manager Dom Argar – Technical Support Officer Stuart Figini -Senior Democratic Services Officer

Town and Parish Councillors

Westbury Town Council – Sheila Kimmins Dilton Marsh Parish Council - Kathy Hutt

Partners

BA13 + Community Area Partnership - Phil McMullen Wiltshire Police - Gill Hughes

Others

Westbury Juniors School - Richard Hatt POPCAN - Tina Devereux, Samantha Shore Leigh Park Community Centre - Debbie Cole Westbury Community Project - Kevin Down Fairfield Farm College - Tina Paget Sovereign Housing Association - Scott Jacobs-Lange Brian Smith

Total in attendance: 20

Agenda Item No.	Summary of Issues Discussed and Decision
1.	Chairman's Welcome and Introductions
	The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting of the Westbury Area Board.
2.	Chairman's Announcements
	The Chairman drew attention to the following written announcements included in the agenda pack:
	 Covid-19 Area Board Boundary Review Connect 5
3.	Apologies for Absence
	Apologies for absence were received from Richard Humphrey – Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service.
4.	Declarations of Interest
	There were no declarations of interest.
5.	<u>Minutes</u>
	 Decision The minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 June 2020 were agreed as a correct record and would be signed by the Chairman at a later date, subject to minute 7 being amended as follows: To confirm Cllr Suzanne Wickham as the Area Board representatives on the Warminster and Westbury CCTV Committee.
6.	Partner and Community Updates
	The Area Board received and noted updates from the following partners:
	 Wiltshire Police – the Area Board noted the update attached to the agenda pack and that the update received from the Police was a joint report with Warminster Area Board, as this included the new neighbourhood areas of Warminster, Westbury, Mere and Tisbury.
	Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service – the Area Board noted the update attached to the agenda supplement 2.

- BA13+ Community Area Partnership There were no updates from the Partnership as no meetings were held since February 2020 due to the COVID-19 situation.
- Dilton Marsh Parish Council the report of the Parish Council is attached at the appendix to the minutes.
- Westbury Town Council The Area Board received an update from Shiela Kimmins on behalf of the Town Council. Shiela reported on the following matters:
 - The Town Council officers were closed in March and staff were working from home
 - Phone lines were very busy with many people were contacting the Town Council with their concerns and seeking help
 - Working with Westbury Link and set up a neighbourhood helpline, which was latterly manned by Crosspoint and church volunteers
 - Working with the Foodbank to deliver many food parcels
 - Supplied shops and businesses with over 400 signs and footprint signs to help with the re-opening of their businesses.
 - In contact with pub watch on a regular basis
 - The Town Council members continued to meet on a regular basis via virtual meetings.
 - Play areas are re-opening, although Penleigh Park was recently severely vandalised.
- Penleigh and Oldfield Park Community Action Network (POPCAN) The Area Board received an update from Tina Devereux about the following matters:
 - Many challenges due to Covid-19 but still connecting virtually and at a sociable distance to keep engaged with the local community and partners in Westbury and beyond.
 - Food parcels have continued to be delivered by Sam Shaw over the last couple of months to the community and helping out with Abrahams kitchen.
 - POPCAN and Sovereign Housing have donated £500 towards Abrahams kitchen to help supply food and ingredients for families
 - A uniform hand it on event was organised for 28 August 2020 and 30 families were helped during the day. This event would be repeated in the future.
 - VE day was celebrated with the community earlier in the year.
 - Working closely with WCP to organise pop in sessions for the community on first Tuesday of every month.
 - Team 10 a local group of school children from Westbury Junior school – had recently been nominated for an 'Inspirational Young Tenants' award at the national TPAS awards. Great achievement to be nominated for this award.

 Future projects included funding a container and CCTV to cover the Penleigh Park following the recent spate of vandalism in the Park; and objections were submitted to the planning application for the Westbury Incinerator.

7. Community Engagement Manager Update

The Community Engagement Manager provided the following updates:

Local Youth Network

- Reminded the Area Board of a youth themed Area Board meeting held at Matravers School towards the end of 2019. The aim of the meeting was to establish a set of priorities for a local youth network to provide positive activities for young people in the Westbury Community Area.
- A local Youth Survey was undertaken and received 150-200 responses. From this a virtual mtg was held with a number of local organisations connected with arranging youth activities. Activities were arranged and social media engagement was positive, although actual participation levels were slightly lower than anticipated.
- Further meetings would be held to discuss how the activities could be developed over the coming months.
- Discussions were being held with POPCAN about a detached youth work proposal.
- Westbury Young People Awards delayed until summer 2021.

Climate Change Themed Area Board

- The themed Area Board meeting was held in February 2020 where a number of priorities and themes were identified.
- The aim of this meeting was to set up a working group to create local action plan and priorities. However, Covid-19 developed and work on the project had ceased during this time. It was anticipated that the first meeting would be held in January 21.

Health & Wellbeing

- The Area Board noted that a Health & Wellbeing Group had not been in operation for some time in Westbury and it was suggested that Group could be established with the aim of improving access to Health & Wellbeing services, improving the health of the Westbury population and reduce social isolation and loneliness.
- A wider Group would consider the objectives and agree on the first project for the Health & Wellbeing Group to support.
- Wiltshire Walking Group restarted in October 2020.
- Westbury Library now open for order and collect.

• <u>Covid-19</u>

The Area Board noted that that all Community Engagement Managers were being asked to prepare a Community Area Reports about the emerging themes and impact of COVID 19. A report would be prepared for Westbury and ideas on how local actions can be supported to respond to the themes and impacts, would be undertaken in consultation with many partners

8. Westbury Community Project

The Area Board received an update from Richard Hatt, Chair of Trustees and Headteacher of Westbury Junior School and Kevin Down provided an update on the Westbury Community Project. They commented on the project and how it was formed and showed videos demonstrating refurbishment and repairs undertaken following recent vandalism at the site.

The following comments were made on the Project:

- Original costs indicated that the project to refurbish the site would amount to £250,000, although the Trustees of the project were looking to spend £50,000 due to lack of funds.
- Support for the project was received from the local community
- Kevin Down was appointed as the development manager and although challenges arose due to increasing vandalism, he managed to complete an outstanding refurbishment.
- The first phase of the refurbishment consisted of new windows and doors, new commercial boiler, new fire alarm system, new CCTV system and new intercom system.
- The facility was being opened up for local groups and the community to use, along with office space for hire.
- Fairfield Farm would be helping to run the Café, which would open at the beginning of November 2020.
- Adult education course would be run by Wiltshire College in the first-floor rooms.
- An online booking facility would be available shortly to make use of the facilities.

The Area Board thanked all involved, especially Richard and Kevin for driving the project forward and congratulated them on such a fantastic achievement.

9. Local School Update

The Area Board received an update from Richard Hatt, on behalf of Westbury Headteachers about COVID-19 and its impact on schools in the Westbury area.

Videos from Westbury Leigh CE Primary School and Fairfield Farm College were shown to demonstrate how pupils dealt with the new ways of working at their places of education following the implementation of restrictions during this time.

Comments made during the presentations included:

- Notifications that school would be closing were received on the Thursday, with closures starting the following Monday.
- Headteachers from across Westbury met to discuss a plan of action and it was agreed that each school would implement their own plan of action due to the different nature of how each school operated.
- Government guidelines developed over time including social distancing, so schools adapted their individual practices and policies to coincide with the guidelines.
- Year 6 and 10 children return to school first, followed by other years.
- Westbury parents had responding magnificently to the new ways of approaching the return to schools with new practices and procedures and support for the headteacher and teaching staff decisions.
- Pupils welcomed the return to school in September 2020.
- The six month timescale that children were away from school has had an impact on routines and the 'habit' of learning, and it is felt that children regressed about a year in their education.
- Recovery plans being put in place to help children feel secure and motivated, and return to their expected age appropriate education.
- Expectation that the school year group 'bubbles' would extend past Christmas 2020.

The Area Board also heard from Tina Paget from Fairfield Farm College, who spoke about the impact of Covid-19 on the college's young people, especially on their mental health. The College stayed open for all young people as they were all classed as vulnerable.

The Chair thanked Richard for his update and felt that it was upsetting to hear that children could be a year behind in their education due to Covid-19. It was also felt that the impact of the pandemic would be wide ranging. The Headteachers, and all teaching staff were thanked for their hard work to implement the new procedures.

10. Community Area Transport Group

The Area Board received the minutes of the Community Area Transport Group of their meeting held on 4 September 2020 and 25 September 2020.

Resolved:

To adopt the recommendations of the Community Area Transport Group meetings held on 4 and 25 September 2020 as outlined in the report.

11. Community Area Grants

	Consideration was given to one application made to the Community Area Grants Scheme.
	Resolved:
	To award Leigh Park Community Centre £4097.41 towards the Lounge Outside inclusive area.
12.	<u>Urgent items</u>
	There were no urgent items.
13.	Future Meeting Dates, Forward Plan, Evaluation and Close
	The next virtual meeting of the Westbury Area Board will be held on 10 December 2020.

DILTON MARSH PARISH COUNCIL

Report for Westbury Area Board meeting on 08/10/2020

As with everyone, keeping things going hasn't been easy. During lockdown, we had a lot of active volunteers, but not really in a planned and organised way. We liaised as much as possible with other groups, especially Westbury TC. The issue now is to try and address the fear, loneliness and isolation that many still feel, via an emergency plan.

The PC has a lot going on:

Planning applications

PC objections sent to Wiltshire Council re NREL and land west of Dartmoor Rd.

Neighbourhood Plan

Steering group working on draft plan

Highways and traffic issues

Following the WC report on 20mph restriction assessment (October 2019) and other suggestions from residents, the PC is preparing a report with recommendations for consultation with the wider community.

Responses to Government consultations

- Planning for Change very complex and in-depth planning knowledge required to make an informed response.
- Planning for the Future agenda item for PC meeting on 15/10/2020. Ditto above I feel.
- Pavement parking response to be submitted. An issue of concern around the parish.

Current PC projects

- Noticeboards being replaced or refurbished
- Dilton News PC newsletter to be revived
- Telephone box purchased by PC; usage being considered.
- New/replacement waste bins working with WC
- Provision of additional grit bins
- Replacement of bench by Dilton Halt following vandalism
- Installation of additional barrier at Alan Powell Lane for prevention of misuse, especially fly tipping and drug dealing
- Consideration of installation of CCTV on playing field to reduce antisocial behaviour
- Improvements on playing field signs, football pitch
- Use of SID

Issues over past few months

- COVID -19 support for residents planning for future needs
- Fly tipping
- Antisocial behaviour believed by young people from Westbury
- Suspected drug dealing working with police (not mentioned on CPT report)
- Closure of the Prince of Wales, which was then advertised for sale by auction. The PC did not support a community bid on the sale. It attracted bids at auction but was not sold.

The PC applied for a grant to support families with IT equipment, but weren't successful. Dilton Marsh School was able to secure funding from another source.

We were unable to hold the annual Family Fun Day, but with support from Westbury Churches Together and Spurgeons, distributed activity packs for children to around 80 families.

A recent joint meeting with other PCs and MP, relating to NREL in this case, was useful and opened up more collaborative working.

Kathy Hutt Chair, DMPC 08/10/2020